



State of Wisconsin


LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE BUREAU

RESEARCH APPENDIX - **PLEASE DO NOT REMOVE FROM DRAFTING FILE**

Date Transfer Requested: 07/25/2007 (Per: GMM)




Appendix A ... Part 06 of 07

 The 2007 drafting file for LRB 07-1267/P1

has been transferred to the drafting file for

2007 LRB 07-1261

 The attached 2005 draft was incorporated into the new 2007 draft listed above. For research purposes, this cover sheet and the complete drafting file were transferred, as a separate appendix, to the 2007 drafting file. If introduced this section will be scanned and added, as a separate appendix, to the electronic drafting file folder.

1 **SECTION 164.** 49.855 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

2 49.855 (4) (a) The department of revenue shall send the portion of any state tax
3 refunds or credits withheld for delinquent child or family support or maintenance or
4 past support, medical expenses, or birth expenses to the department of ~~workforce~~
5 ~~development~~ children and families or its designee for deposit in the support
6 collections trust fund under s. 25.68 and shall send the portion of any state tax
7 refunds or credits withheld for delinquent receiving and disbursing fees to the
8 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or its designee for
9 deposit in the appropriation account under s. ~~20.445 (3)~~ 20.437 (2) (ja). The
10 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families shall make a settlement
11 at least annually with the department of revenue. The settlement shall state the
12 amounts certified, the amounts deducted from tax refunds and credits, and the
13 administrative costs incurred by the department of revenue.

14 **SECTION 165.** 49.855 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 49.855 (4) (b) The department of administration shall send the portion of any
16 federal tax refunds or credits received from the internal revenue service that was
17 withheld for delinquent child or family support or maintenance or past support,
18 medical expenses, or birth expenses to the department of ~~workforce development~~
19 children and families or its designee for deposit in the support collections trust fund
20 under s. 25.68 and shall send the portion of any federal tax refunds or credits received
21 from the internal revenue service that was withheld for delinquent receiving and
22 disbursing fees to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
23 or its designee for deposit in the appropriation account under s. ~~20.445 (3)~~ 20.437 (2)
24 (ja).

25 **SECTION 166.** 49.855 (4m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 49.855 (4m) (b) The department of revenue may provide a certification that it
2 receives under sub. (1), (2m), or (2p) to the department of administration. Upon
3 receipt of the certification, the department of administration shall determine
4 whether the obligor is a vendor or is receiving any other payments from this state,
5 except for wages, retirement benefits, or assistance under s. 45.352, 1971 stats., s.
6 45.40 (1), this chapter, or ch. 46, 108, or 301. If the department of administration
7 determines that the obligor is a vendor or is receiving payments from this state,
8 except for wages, retirement benefits, or assistance under s. 45.352, 1971 stats., s.
9 45.40 (1), this chapter, or ch. 46, 108, or 301, it shall begin to withhold the amount
10 certified from those payments and shall notify the obligor that the state intends to
11 reduce any payments due the obligor by the amount the obligor is delinquent under
12 the support, maintenance, or receiving and disbursing fee order or obligation, by the
13 outstanding amount for past support, medical expenses, or birth expenses under the
14 court order, or by the amount due under s. 46.10 (4) or 301.12 (4). The notice shall
15 provide that within 20 days after receipt of the notice the obligor may request a
16 hearing before the circuit court rendering the order under which the obligation arose.
17 An obligor may, within 20 days after receiving notice, request a hearing under this
18 paragraph. Within 10 days after receiving a request for hearing under this
19 paragraph, the court shall set the matter for hearing. A circuit court commissioner
20 may conduct the hearing. Pending further order by the court or circuit court
21 commissioner, the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or its
22 designee, whichever is appropriate, may not disburse the payments withheld from
23 the obligor. The sole issues at the hearing are whether the obligor owes the amount
24 certified and, if not and it is a support or maintenance order, whether the money
25 withheld shall be paid to the obligor or held for future support or maintenance, except

1 that the obligor's ability to pay is also an issue at the hearing if the obligation relates
2 to an order under ~~s. 767.51 (3) (e) 1. or 767.62 (4) (d) 1. s. 767.89 (3) (e) 1. or 767.805~~
3 (4) (d) 1. or 767.89 (3) (e) 1. and the order specifies that the court found that the
4 obligor's income was at or below the poverty line established under 42 USC 9902 (2).

5 **SECTION 167.** 49.855 (4m) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 49.855 (4m) (c) Except as provided by order of the court after hearing under
7 par. (b), the department of administration shall continue withholding until the
8 amount certified is recovered in full. The department of administration shall
9 transfer the amounts withheld under this paragraph to the department of ~~workforce~~
10 development children and families or its designee, the department of health and
11 family services, or the department of corrections, whichever is appropriate. The
12 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or its designee shall
13 deposit amounts withheld for delinquent child or family support, maintenance, or
14 receiving and disbursing fees or past support, medical expenses, or birth expenses
15 in the appropriation account under ~~s. 20.445 (3) 20.437 (2) (kp).~~

16 **SECTION 168.** 49.855 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 49.855 (5) Certification of an obligation to the department of revenue does not
18 deprive any party of the right to collect the obligation or to prosecute the obligor. The
19 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or its designee shall
20 immediately notify the department of revenue of any collection of an obligation that
21 has been certified to the department of revenue.

22 **SECTION 169.** 49.856 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 49.856 (1) (b) "Department" means the department of ~~workforce development~~
24 children and families.

25 **SECTION 170.** 49.857 (1) (cf) of the statutes is created to read:

1 49.857 (1) (cf) "Department" means the department of children and families.

2 **SECTION 171.** 49.857 (1) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

3 49.857 (1) (f) "Subpoena or warrant" means a subpoena or warrant issued by
4 the department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child support agency and relating to
5 paternity or support proceedings.

6 **SECTION 172.** 49.857 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

7 49.857 (2) (a) The department of ~~workforce development~~ shall establish a
8 system, in accordance with federal law, under which a licensing authority is
9 requested, and a licensing agency or credentialing board is required, to restrict,
10 limit, suspend, withhold, deny, refuse to grant or issue, or refuse to renew or
11 revalidate a license in a timely manner upon certification by and in cooperation with
12 the department of ~~workforce development~~, if the individual holding or applying for
13 the license is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of support or fails to
14 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant.

15 **SECTION 173.** 49.857 (2) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 49.857 (2) (b) (intro.) Under the system, the department of ~~workforce~~
17 ~~development~~ shall enter into a memorandum of understanding with a licensing
18 authority, if the licensing authority agrees, and with a licensing agency. A
19 memorandum of understanding under this paragraph shall address at least all of the
20 following:

21 **SECTION 174.** 49.857 (2) (b) 2. (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 49.857 (2) (b) 2. (intro.) Procedures that the department of ~~workforce~~
23 ~~development~~ shall use for doing all of the following:

24 **SECTION 175.** 49.857 (2) (b) 2. a. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 49.857 (2) (b) 2. a. Certifying to the licensing authority or licensing agency a
2 delinquency in support or a failure to comply with a subpoena or warrant. The
3 memorandum of understanding with the department of regulation and licensing
4 shall include procedures for the department of regulation and licensing to notify a
5 credentialing board that a certification of delinquency in support or failure to comply
6 with a subpoena or warrant has been made by the department of ~~workforce~~
7 ~~development~~ children and families with respect to an individual who holds or applied
8 for a credential granted by the credentialing board.

9 **SECTION 176.** 49.857 (2) (b) 3. c. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 49.857 (2) (b) 3. c. Issuing or reinstating a license if the department of
11 ~~workforce development~~ children and families notifies the licensing authority or
12 licensing agency that an individual who was delinquent in making court-ordered
13 payments of support has paid the delinquent support or made satisfactory
14 alternative payment arrangements or that an individual who failed to comply with
15 a subpoena or warrant has satisfied the requirements under the subpoena or
16 warrant. The memorandum of understanding with the department of regulation
17 and licensing shall include procedures for the department of regulation and licensing
18 to direct a credentialing board to grant or reinstate a credential if the department
19 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families notifies the department of
20 regulation and licensing that an individual who holds or applied for a credential
21 granted by the credentialing board has paid the delinquent support or made
22 satisfactory alternative payment arrangements or that an individual who failed to
23 comply with a subpoena or warrant has satisfied the requirements under the
24 subpoena or warrant.

25 **SECTION 177.** 49.857 (2) (b) 5. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 49.857 (2) (b) 5. Procedures for safeguarding the confidentiality of information
2 about an individual, including social security numbers obtained by the department
3 of ~~workforce development~~, the licensing authority, the licensing agency, or a
4 credentialing board.

5 **SECTION 178.** 49.857 (3) (a) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

6 49.857 (3) (a) (intro.) Before the department of ~~workforce development~~ certifies
7 to a licensing authority or a licensing agency under the system established under
8 sub. (2) that an individual is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of
9 support, the department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child support agency shall
10 provide notice to the individual by regular mail. The notice shall inform the
11 individual of all of the following:

12 **SECTION 179.** 49.857 (3) (a) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

13 49.857 (3) (a) 4. That the certification will not be made if the individual pays
14 the delinquent amount in full or makes satisfactory alternative payment
15 arrangements with the department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child support
16 agency. The notice shall inform the individual of how he or she may pay the
17 delinquent amount or make satisfactory alternative payment arrangements.

18 **SECTION 180.** 49.857 (3) (ac) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

19 49.857 (3) (ac) 1. If an individual timely requests a hearing under par. (a) 5.,
20 the court shall schedule a hearing within 10 business days after receiving the
21 request. A circuit court commissioner may conduct the hearing. The only issues at
22 the hearing shall be whether the individual is delinquent in making court-ordered
23 payments of support and whether any alternative payment arrangement offered by
24 the department of ~~workforce development~~ or the county child support agency is
25 reasonable.

1 **SECTION 181.** 49.857 (3) (ac) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

2 49.857 (3) (ac) 2. If at a hearing under subd. 1. the court or circuit court
3 commissioner finds that the individual does not owe delinquent support, or if within
4 20 business days after receiving a notice under par. (a) the individual pays the
5 delinquent amount in full or makes satisfactory alternative payment arrangements,
6 the department of ~~workforce development~~ may not place the individual's name on a
7 certification list.

8 **SECTION 182.** 49.857 (3) (ac) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

9 49.857 (3) (ac) 3. If at a hearing under subd. 1. the court or circuit court
10 commissioner makes a written determination that alternative payment
11 arrangements proposed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child
12 support agency are not reasonable, the court or circuit court commissioner may order
13 for the individual an alternative payment arrangement. If the court or circuit court
14 commissioner orders an alternative payment arrangement, the department of
15 ~~workforce development~~ may not place the individual's name on a certification list.

16 **SECTION 183.** 49.857 (3) (am) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 49.857 (3) (am) (intro.) If an individual, after receiving notice under par. (a),
18 does not timely request a hearing or pay the delinquent amount of support or make
19 satisfactory alternative payment arrangements, the department of ~~workforce~~
20 ~~development~~ shall place the individual's name on a certification list. Thereafter, the
21 department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child support agency shall provide a 2nd
22 notice to the individual by regular mail that informs the individual of all of the
23 following:

24 **SECTION 184.** 49.857 (3) (am) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 49.857 (3) (am) 4. That the certification will not be made if the individual pays
2 the delinquent amount in full or makes satisfactory alternative payment
3 arrangements with the department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child support
4 agency. The notice shall inform the individual of how he or she may pay the
5 delinquent amount or make satisfactory alternative payment arrangements.

6 **SECTION 185.** 49.857 (3) (ar) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 49.857 (3) (ar) 1. If an individual timely requests a hearing under par. (am) 5.,
8 the court shall schedule a hearing within 10 business days after receiving the
9 request. A circuit court commissioner may conduct the hearing. The only issues at
10 the hearing shall be whether the individual is delinquent in making court-ordered
11 payments of support and whether any alternative payment arrangement offered by
12 the department of ~~workforce development~~ or the county child support agency is
13 reasonable.

14 **SECTION 186.** 49.857 (3) (ar) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 49.857 (3) (ar) 2. If at a hearing under subd. 1. the court or circuit court
16 commissioner finds that the individual does not owe delinquent support, or if within
17 20 business days after receiving a notice under par. (am) the individual pays the
18 delinquent amount in full or makes satisfactory alternative payment arrangements,
19 the department of ~~workforce development~~ shall remove the individual's name from
20 the certification list.

21 **SECTION 187.** 49.857 (3) (ar) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

22 49.857 (3) (ar) 3. If at a hearing under subd. 1. the court or circuit court
23 commissioner makes a written determination that alternative payment
24 arrangements proposed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child
25 support agency are not reasonable, the court or circuit court commissioner may order

1 for the individual an alternative payment arrangement. If the court or circuit court
2 commissioner orders an alternative payment arrangement, the department of
3 ~~workforce development~~ may not place the individual's name on a certification list.

4 **SECTION 188.** 49.857 (3) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 49.857 (3) (b) (intro.) Any subpoena or warrant shall include notice to the
6 individual of the effect that a failure to comply with the subpoena or warrant may
7 have on any license that the individual holds or for which the individual applies. If
8 the individual fails to comply, before the department of ~~workforce development~~
9 certifies to a licensing authority or a licensing agency under the system established
10 under sub. (2) that an individual has failed to comply with a subpoena or warrant,
11 the department of ~~workforce development~~ or a child support agency shall provide
12 notice to the individual by regular mail. The notice shall inform the individual of all
13 of the following:

14 **SECTION 189.** 49.857 (3) (bm) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 49.857 (3) (bm) If an individual, after receiving notice under par. (b), does not
16 satisfy the requirements under the subpoena or warrant, the department of
17 ~~workforce development~~ shall place the individual's name on a certification list.

18 **SECTION 190.** 49.857 (3) (c) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 49.857 (3) (c) (intro.) If the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
20 families provides a certification list to a licensing authority, a licensing agency or,
21 with respect to a credential granted by a credentialing board, the department of
22 regulation and licensing, upon receipt of the list the licensing authority if the
23 licensing authority agrees, the licensing agency or, with respect to a credential
24 granted by a credentialing board, the department of regulation and licensing shall
25 do all of the following:

1 **SECTION 191.** 49.857 (3) (d) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

2 49.857 (3) (d) 1. Subject to sub. (2) (d), if an individual who, on the basis of
3 delinquent support, is denied a license or whose license, on the basis of delinquent
4 support, is restricted, limited, suspended, or refused renewal or revalidation under
5 a memorandum of understanding entered into under sub. (2) (b) pays the delinquent
6 amount of support in full or makes satisfactory alternative payment arrangements,
7 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families shall immediately
8 notify the licensing authority or licensing agency to issue or reinstate the individual's
9 license as provided in the memorandum of understanding. If the individual held or
10 applied for a credential granted by a credentialing board, the department of
11 regulation and licensing shall, upon notice by the department of ~~workforce~~
12 ~~development~~ children and families, notify the credentialing board to grant or
13 reinstate the individual's credential.

14 **SECTION 192.** 49.857 (3) (d) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 49.857 (3) (d) 2. Subject to sub. (2) (d), if an individual who, on the basis of a
16 failure to comply with a subpoena or warrant, is denied a license or whose license,
17 on the basis of a failure to comply with a subpoena or warrant, is restricted, limited,
18 suspended, or refused renewal or revalidation under a memorandum of
19 understanding entered into under sub. (2) (b) satisfies the requirements under the
20 subpoena or warrant, the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
21 families shall immediately notify the licensing authority or licensing agency to issue
22 or reinstate the individual's license as provided in the memorandum of
23 understanding. If the individual held or applied for a credential granted by a
24 credentialing board, the department of regulation and licensing shall, upon notice

1 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families, notify the
2 credentialing board to grant or reinstate the individual's credential.

3 **SECTION 193.** 49.857 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 49.857 (4) Each licensing agency shall enter into a memorandum of
5 understanding with the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
6 under sub. (2) (b) and shall cooperate with the department of ~~workforce development~~
7 children and families in its administration of s. 49.22. The department of regulation
8 and licensing shall enter into a memorandum of understanding with the department
9 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families on behalf of a credentialing board
10 with respect to a credential granted by the credentialing board.

11 **SECTION 194.** 49.858 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 49.858 (1) (intro.) and
12 amended to read:

13 49.858 (1) (intro.) In this section, ~~“support”~~;

14 (b) “Support” has the meaning given in s. 49.857 (1) (g).

15 **SECTION 195.** 49.858 (1) (a) of the statutes is created to read:

16 49.858 (1) (a) “Department” means the department of children and families.

17 **SECTION 196.** 49.858 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 49.858 (2) RULES. (intro.) For the procedures under this subchapter for the
19 administrative enforcement of support obligations, the department of ~~workforce~~
20 ~~development~~ shall promulgate rules related to all of the following:

21 **SECTION 197.** 49.858 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 49.858 (3) REVIEW OF CIRCUIT COURT COMMISSIONER DECISIONS. If a circuit court
23 commissioner conducts a hearing in any administrative support enforcement
24 proceeding under s. 49.852, 49.856 or 49.857, the department of ~~workforce~~
25 ~~development~~ or the obligor may, within 15 business days after the date that the

1 circuit court commissioner makes his or her decision, request review of the decision
2 by the court with jurisdiction over the matter.

3 **SECTION 198.** 49.86 of the statutes is renumbered 49.86 (2) and amended to
4 read:

5 49.86 (2) Withdrawal or disbursement of moneys deposited in a public
6 depository, as defined in s. 34.01 (5), to the credit of the department of ~~workforce~~
7 ~~development~~ or any of its divisions or agencies shall be by check, share draft, or other
8 draft signed by the secretary of ~~workforce development~~ or by one or more persons in
9 the department of ~~workforce development~~ designated by written authorization of the
10 secretary of ~~workforce development~~. Such checks, share drafts, and other drafts
11 shall be signed personally or by use of a mechanical device adopted by the secretary
12 of ~~workforce development~~ or his or her designees for affixing a facsimile signature.
13 Any public depository shall be fully warranted and protected in making payment on
14 any check, share draft, or other draft bearing such facsimile signature
15 notwithstanding that the facsimile may have been placed thereon without the
16 authority of the secretary of ~~workforce development~~ or his or her designees.

17 **SECTION 199.** 49.86 (1) of the statutes is created to read:

18 49.86 (1) In this section:

19 (a) "Department" means the department of children and families.

20 (b) "Secretary" means the secretary of children and families.

21 **SECTION 200.** 49.89 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 49.89 (2) SUBROGATION. The department of health and family services, the
23 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families, a county, or an elected
24 tribal governing body that provides any public assistance under this chapter or
25 under s. 253.05 as a result of the occurrence of an injury, sickness, or death that

1 creates a claim or cause of action, whether in tort or contract, on the part of a public
2 assistance recipient or beneficiary or the estate of a recipient or beneficiary against
3 a 3rd party, including an insurer, is subrogated to the rights of the recipient,
4 beneficiary or estate and may make a claim or maintain an action or intervene in a
5 claim or action by the recipient, beneficiary, or estate against the 3rd party.
6 Subrogation under this subsection because of the provision of medical assistance
7 under subch. IV constitutes a lien, equal to the amount of the medical assistance
8 provided as a result of the injury, sickness, or death that gave rise to the claim. The
9 lien is on any payment resulting from a judgment or settlement that may be due the
10 obligor. A lien under this subsection continues until it is released and discharged by
11 the department of health and family services.

12 **SECTION 201.** 49.89 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 49.89 (6) DEPARTMENTS' DUTIES AND POWERS. The department of health and
14 family services and the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
15 shall enforce their rights under this section and may contract for the recovery of any
16 claim or right of indemnity arising under this section.

17 **SECTION 202.** 49.89 (7) (d) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

18 49.89 (7) (d) 2. Any county or elected tribal governing body that has made a
19 recovery under this section for which it is eligible to receive an incentive payment
20 under par. (c) shall report such recovery to the department of ~~workforce development~~
21 children and families within 30 days after the end of the month in which the recovery
22 is made in a manner specified by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
23 and families.

24 **SECTION 203.** 49.90 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 49.90 (2) Upon failure of these relatives to provide maintenance the authorities
2 or board shall submit to the corporation counsel a report of its findings. Upon receipt
3 of the report the corporation counsel shall, within 60 days, apply to the circuit court
4 for the county in which the dependent person under sub. (1) (a) 1. or the child of a
5 dependent person under sub. (1) (a) 2. resides for an order to compel the
6 maintenance. Upon such an application the corporation counsel shall make a
7 written report to the county department under s. 46.215, 46.22, or 46.23, with a copy
8 to the chairperson of the county board of supervisors in a county with a single-county
9 department or the county boards of supervisors in counties with a multicounty
10 department, and to the department of health and family services or the department
11 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families, whichever is appropriate.

12 **SECTION 204.** 49.90 (2g) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 49.90 (2g) In addition to the remedy specified in sub. (2), upon failure of a
14 grandparent to provide maintenance under sub. (1) (a) 2., another grandparent who
15 is or may be required to provide maintenance under sub. (1) (a) 2., a child of a
16 dependent minor or the child's parent may apply to the circuit court for the county
17 in which the child resides for an order to compel the provision of maintenance. A
18 county department under s. 46.215, 46.22, or 46.23, a county child support agency
19 under s. 59.53 (5), or the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
20 may initiate an action to obtain maintenance of the child by the child's grandparent
21 under sub. (1) (a) 2., regardless of whether the child receives public assistance.

22 **SECTION 205.** 50.498 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 50.498 (1m) If an individual who applies for a certificate of approval, license
24 or provisional license under sub. (1) does not have a social security number, the
25 individual, as a condition of obtaining the certificate of approval, license or

1 provisional license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or
2 affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social security
3 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
4 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A certificate of approval, license or
5 provisional license issued in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this
6 subsection is invalid.

7 **SECTION 206.** 51.032 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 51.032 (1m) If an individual who applies for a certification or approval under
9 sub. (1) does not have a social security number, the individual, as a condition of
10 obtaining the certification or approval, shall submit a statement made or subscribed
11 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social
12 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department
13 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A certification or approval issued
14 in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

15 **SECTION 207.** 59.22 (2) (c) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

16 59.22 (2) (c) 2. No action of the board may be contrary to or in derogation of the
17 rules of the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families under s.
18 49.78 (4) to (7) relating to employees administering old-age assistance, aid to
19 families with dependent children, aid to the blind, or aid to totally and permanently
20 disabled persons or ss. 63.01 to 63.17.

21 **SECTION 208.** 59.40 (2) (p) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 59.40 (2) (p) Cooperate with the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
23 and families with respect to the child and spousal support and establishment of
24 paternity and medical support liability program under ss. 49.22 and 59.53 (5), and

1 provide that department with any information from court records which it requires
2 to administer that program.

3 **SECTION 209.** 59.52 (4) (a) 18. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 59.52 (4) (a) 18. Case records and other record material of all public assistance
5 that are kept as required under ch. 49, if no payments have been made for at least
6 3 years and if a face sheet or similar record of each case and a financial record of all
7 payments for each aid account are preserved in accordance with rules adopted by the
8 department of health and family services or by the department of ~~workforce~~
9 ~~development~~ children and families. If the department of health and family services
10 or the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families has preserved
11 such case records and other record material on computer disc or tape or similar
12 device, a county may destroy the original records and record material under rules
13 adopted by the department that has preserved those case records or other record
14 material.

15 **SECTION 210.** 59.53 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 59.53 (5) (a) The board shall contract with the department of ~~workforce~~
17 ~~development~~ children and families to implement and administer the child and
18 spousal support and establishment of paternity and the medical support liability
19 programs provided for by Title IV of the federal social security act. The board may
20 designate by board resolution any office, officer, board, department or agency, except
21 the clerk of circuit court, as the county child support agency. The board or county
22 child support agency shall implement and administer the programs in accordance
23 with the contract with the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
24 families. The attorneys responsible for support enforcement under sub. (6) (a),
25 circuit court commissioners and all other county officials shall cooperate with the

1 county and the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families as
2 necessary to provide the services required under the programs. The county shall
3 charge the fee established by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
4 families under s. 49.22 for services provided under this paragraph to persons not
5 receiving benefits under s. 49.148 or 49.155 or assistance under s. 46.261, 49.19 or
6 49.47.

7 **SECTION 211.** 59.53 (5) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 59.53 (5) (b) The county child support agency under par. (a) shall electronically
9 enter into the statewide data system related to child and spousal support payments
10 that is operated by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
11 the terms of any order made or judgment granted in the circuit court of the county
12 requiring payments under s. 948.22 (7) or ch. 767 or 769 that are directed under s.
13 767.57 (1) to be paid to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
14 families or its designee. The county child support agency shall enter the terms of any
15 such order or judgment within the time required by federal law and shall enter
16 revisions ordered by the court to any order or judgment the terms of which are
17 maintained on the data system.

18 **SECTION 212.** 69.14 (1) (cm) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 69.14 (1) (cm) *Information concerning paternity.* For a birth which occurs en
20 route to or at a hospital, the filing party shall give the mother a copy of the pamphlet
21 under s. 69.03 (14). If the child's parents are not married at the time of the child's
22 birth, the filing party shall give the mother a copy of the form prescribed by the state
23 registrar under s. 69.15 (3) (b) 3. The filing party shall ensure that trained,
24 designated hospital staff provide to the child's available parents oral information or
25 an audio or video presentation and written information about the form and the

1 significance and benefits of, and alternatives to, establishing paternity, before the
2 parents sign the form. The filing party shall also provide an opportunity to complete
3 the form and have the form notarized in the hospital. If the mother provides a
4 completed form to the filing party while she is a patient in the hospital and within
5 5 days after the birth, the filing party shall send the form directly to the state
6 registrar. The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families shall pay
7 the filing party a financial incentive for correctly filing a form within 60 days after
8 the child's birth.

9 **SECTION 213.** 69.15 (3) (b) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 69.15 (3) (b) 3. Except as provided under par. (c), if the state registrar receives
11 a statement acknowledging paternity on a form prescribed by the state registrar and
12 signed by both parents, and by a parent or legal guardian of any parent who is under
13 the age of 18 years, along with the fee under s. 69.22, the state registrar shall insert
14 the name of the father under subd. 1. The state registrar shall mark the certificate
15 to show that the form is on file. The form shall be available to the department of
16 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
17 s. 59.53 (5) pursuant to the program responsibilities under s. 49.22 or to any other
18 person with a direct and tangible interest in the record. The state registrar shall
19 include on the form for the acknowledgment the information in s. 767.805 and the
20 items in s. 767.813 (5g).

21 **SECTION 214.** 69.20 (3) (f) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 69.20 (3) (f) The state or a local registrar may disclose a social security number
23 on a vital record to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
24 or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) in response to a request under s.
25 49.22 (2m).

1 **SECTION 215.** 71.93 (1) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

2 71.93 (1) (a) 2. A delinquent child support or spousal support obligation that
3 has been reduced to a judgment and has been submitted by an agency of another
4 state to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for
5 certification under this section.

6 **SECTION 216.** 71.93 (1) (a) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 71.93 (1) (a) 4. An amount that the department of ~~workforce development~~
8 children and families may recover under s. 49.161 or 49.195 (3) or collect under s.
9 49.147 (6) (cm), if the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
10 has certified the amount under s. 49.85.

11 **SECTION 217.** 73.03 (50) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 73.03 (50) (c) In the case of an applicant who is an individual and who has a
13 social security number, sets forth the social security number of the applicant or, in
14 the case of an applicant who is an individual and who does not have a social security
15 number, submits a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the
16 applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall
17 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A
18 certificate issued in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this paragraph
19 is invalid.

20 **SECTION 218.** 73.03 (50m) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 73.03 (50m) To enter into a memorandum of understanding with the
22 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families under s. 49.857. The
23 department of revenue shall suspend, refuse to issue or refuse to renew any
24 certificate issued under sub. (50) as provided in the memorandum of understanding
25 entered into under s. 49.857. Notwithstanding ss. 71.78 and 77.61 (5), the

1 department of revenue shall disclose to the department of ~~workforce development~~
2 children and families the social security number of any applicant for a certificate
3 issued under sub. (50) as provided in the memorandum of understanding.

4 **SECTION 219.** 73.0301 (2) (c) 1. am. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 73.0301 (2) (c) 1. am. If the applicant is an individual and does not have a social
6 security number, a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the
7 applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall
8 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A
9 license issued in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this subd. 1. am.
10 is invalid.

11 **SECTION 220.** 73.0301 (2) (c) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

12 73.0301 (2) (c) 2. A licensing department may not disclose any information
13 received under subd. 1. a. or b. to any person except to the department of revenue for
14 the purpose of requesting certifications under par. (b) 2. in accordance with the
15 memorandum of understanding under sub. (4) and administering state taxes or to
16 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the purpose of
17 administering s. 49.22.

18 **SECTION 221.** 77.61 (5) (b) 11. of the statutes is amended to read:

19 77.61 (5) (b) 11. The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
20 families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) in response to a request
21 under s. 49.22 (2m).

22 **SECTION 222.** 85.24 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 85.24 (4) (b) Paragraph (a) does not prohibit the disclosure of the information
24 to the extent necessary to administer the ride-sharing program nor, if requested
25 under s. 49.22 (2m), does it prohibit disclosure of the name or address of a person or

1 of his or her employer to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
2 families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5).

3 **SECTION 223.** 85.24 (4) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 85.24 (4) (c) Any person who willfully discloses or who, under false pretenses,
5 willfully requests or obtains information in violation of par. (a) may be required to
6 forfeit not more than \$500 for each violation. This paragraph does not apply to
7 information disclosed, requested or obtained to the extent necessary to administer
8 the ride-sharing program or, if requested under s. 49.22 (2m), to the department of
9 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
10 s. 59.53 (5).

11 **SECTION 224.** 93.135 (1m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 93.135 (1m) (a) If an individual who applies for the issuance or renewal of a
13 license, registration, registration certificate or certification specified in sub. (1) does
14 not have a social security number, the department shall require the applicant, as a
15 condition of issuing or renewing the license, registration, registration certificate or
16 certification, to submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation
17 that the applicant does not have a social security number. The statement shall be
18 in the form prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
19 families.

20 **SECTION 225.** 93.135 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 93.135 (2) The department of agriculture, trade and consumer protection may
22 not disclose any information received under sub. (1) to any person except to the
23 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with a
24 memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

25 **SECTION 226.** 93.135 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 93.135 (3) The department shall deny an application for the issuance or
2 renewal of a license, registration, registration certificate or certification specified in
3 sub. (1) or shall suspend or restrict a license, registration, registration certificate or
4 certification specified in sub. (1) for failure to make court-ordered payments of child
5 or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
6 related to the support of a child or a former spouse or failure to comply, after
7 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
8 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
9 s. 59.53 (5) and relating to paternity or child support proceedings, as required in a
10 memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

11 **SECTION 227.** 101.02 (20) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

12 101.02 (20) (e) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
13 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
14 a license shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to
15 the department of commerce that the applicant does not have a social security
16 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
17 ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

18 **SECTION 228.** 101.02 (21) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

19 101.02 (21) (b) As provided in the memorandum of understanding under s.
20 49.857 and except as provided in par. (e), the department of commerce may not issue
21 or renew a license unless the applicant provides the department of commerce with
22 his or her social security number. The department of commerce may not disclose the
23 social security number except that the department of commerce may disclose the
24 social security number of an applicant for a license under par. (a) or a renewal of a

1 license under par. (a) to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
2 families for the sole purpose of administering s. 49.22.

3 **SECTION 229.** 101.02 (21) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 101.02 (21) (c) As provided in the memorandum of understanding under s.
5 49.857, the department may not issue or renew a license if the applicant or licensee
6 is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family support,
7 maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the
8 support of a child or former spouse or if the applicant or licensee fails to comply, after
9 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
10 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
11 s. 59.53 (5) and relating to paternity or child support proceedings.

12 **SECTION 230.** 101.02 (21) (d) of the statutes is amended to read:

13 101.02 (21) (d) As provided in the memorandum of understanding under s.
14 49.857, the department shall restrict or suspend a license issued by the department
15 if the licensee is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family
16 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related
17 to the support of a child or former spouse or if the licensee fails to comply, after
18 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
19 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
20 s. 59.53 (5) and relating to paternity or child support proceedings.

21 **SECTION 231.** 101.02 (21) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

22 101.02 (21) (e) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
23 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
24 a license shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to
25 the department of commerce that the applicant does not have a social security

1 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
2 ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

3 **SECTION 232.** 115.315 of the statutes is amended to read:

4 **115.315 Memorandum of understanding; license restriction and**
5 **suspension.** As provided in the memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857, the
6 department shall restrict or suspend a license or permit granted by the department
7 if the licensee or permit holder is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of
8 child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other
9 expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse or if the licensee or permit
10 holder fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued
11 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
12 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
13 proceedings.

14 **SECTION 233.** 115.347 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 115.347 (1) Beginning in the 1994-95 school year, a school board may submit
16 enrollment data to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
17 for the purpose of directly certifying children as eligible for free or reduced-price
18 meals under the federal school nutrition programs. The department of ~~workforce~~
19 ~~development~~ children and families shall prescribe a format for the report.

20 **SECTION 234.** 115.347 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 115.347 (2) Whenever a school district that is located in whole or in part in a
22 county that has converted to the client assistance for reemployment and economic
23 support data system submits a report under sub. (1) in the prescribed format, the
24 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families shall determine which
25 children enrolled in the school district are members of Wisconsin works Works

1 groups participating under s. 49.147 (3) to (5) or of families receiving aid to families
2 with dependent children or food stamps and shall provide the information to the
3 school board as soon thereafter as possible. The school board shall use the
4 information to directly certify children as eligible for free or reduced-price meals
5 served by the school district under federal school nutrition programs, pursuant to 42
6 USC 1758 (b) (2) (C) (ii) and (iii).

7 **SECTION 235.** 115.347 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

8 115.347 (3) The state superintendent shall assist school boards in developing
9 a method for submitting enrollment data to the department of workforce
10 development children and families under sub. (1).

11 **SECTION 236.** 118.125 (2) (i) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 118.125 (2) (i) Upon request, the school district clerk or his or her designee shall
13 provide the names of pupils who have withdrawn from the public school prior to
14 graduation under s. 118.15 (1) (c) to the technical college district board in which the
15 public school is located or, for verification of eligibility for public assistance under ch.
16 49, to the department of health and family services, the department of workforce
17 development children and families or a county department under s. 46.215, 46.22 or
18 46.23.

19 **SECTION 237.** 118.19 (1r) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 118.19 (1r) (a) As provided in the memorandum of understanding under s.
21 49.857, the department of public instruction may not issue or renew a license or
22 permit or revalidate a license that has no expiration date unless the applicant
23 provides the department of public instruction with his or her social security number.
24 The department of public instruction may not disclose the social security number

1 except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole
2 purpose of administering s. 49.22.

3 **SECTION 238.** 118.19 (1r) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 118.19 (1r) (b) As provided in the memorandum of understanding under s.
5 49.857, the department may not issue or renew a license or permit or revalidate a
6 license that has no expiration date if the applicant, licensee or permit holder is
7 delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family support,
8 maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the
9 support of a child or former spouse or if the applicant, licensee or permit holder fails
10 to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
11 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
12 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
13 proceedings.

14 **SECTION 239.** 118.19 (10) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 118.19 (10) (g) At the request under s. 49.22 (2m) of the department of
16 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
17 s. 59.53 (5), the state superintendent shall release the name and address of the
18 applicant or licensee, the name and address of the applicant's or licensee's employer
19 and financial information, if any, related to the applicant or licensee obtained under
20 this subsection to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or
21 the county child support agency.

22 **SECTION 240.** 134.43 (3m) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 134.43 (3m) Subsections (2) (b), (2m) and (3) do not apply to information
24 regarding the name, address or employer of or financial information related to a
25 subscriber or member of a subscriber's household that is requested under s. 49.22

1 (2m) by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county
2 child support agency under s. 59.53 (5).

3 **SECTION 241.** 138.09 (1m) (b) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 138.09 (1m) (b) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a.
5 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance
6 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

7 **SECTION 242.** 138.09 (1m) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 138.09 (1m) (c) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
9 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
10 a license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to
11 the division that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of
12 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~
13 children and families.

14 **SECTION 243.** 138.09 (3) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 138.09 (3) (am) 3. The applicant fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with
16 a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
17 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to
18 paternity or child support proceedings.

19 **SECTION 244.** 138.09 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 138.09 (4) (b) The division shall restrict or suspend a license under this section
21 if, in the case of a licensee who is an individual, the licensee fails to comply, after
22 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
23 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
24 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in
25 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth

1 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
2 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
3 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph
4 is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of
5 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to a hearing under
6 par. (a).

7 **SECTION 245.** 138.12 (3) (d) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 138.12 (3) (d) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a. to
9 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with
10 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

11 **SECTION 246.** 138.12 (3) (e) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

12 138.12 (3) (e) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
13 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
14 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
15 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
16 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
17 ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

18 **SECTION 247.** 138.12 (4) (b) 6. of the statutes is amended to read:

19 138.12 (4) (b) 6. If an individual, has not failed to comply, after appropriate
20 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce~~
21 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53
22 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings and is not delinquent in
23 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
24 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or

1 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
2 s. 49.857.

3 **SECTION 248.** 138.12 (5) (am) 1. c. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 138.12 (5) (am) 1. c. In the case of a licensee who is an individual, the applicant
5 fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant that is issued
6 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
7 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is related to paternity or child support
8 proceedings or the applicant is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of
9 child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other
10 expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a
11 memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose
12 renewal application is denied under this subd. 1. c. is entitled to a notice and hearing
13 under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to a hearing under par. (b).

14 **SECTION 249.** 138.12 (5) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 138.12 (5) (am) 2. The division shall restrict or suspend the license of any
16 insurance premium finance company if the division finds that, in the case of a
17 licensee who is an individual, the licensee fails to comply, after appropriate notice,
18 with a subpoena or warrant that is issued by the department of ~~workforce~~
19 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53
20 (5) and that is related to paternity or child support proceedings or the licensee is
21 delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family support,
22 maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the
23 support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding
24 entered into under s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended

1 under this subdivision is entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not
2 entitled to a hearing under par. (b).

3 **SECTION 250.** 146.40 (4d) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 146.40 (4d) (am) If an individual who applies for a certification or approval
5 under par. (a) does not have a social security number, the individual, as a condition
6 of obtaining certification or approval, shall submit a statement made or subscribed
7 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social
8 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department
9 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A certification or approval issued
10 in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this paragraph is invalid.

11 **SECTION 251.** 146.51 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 146.51 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a license, training
13 permit or certification under sub. (1) does not have a social security number, the
14 individual, as a condition of obtaining the license, training permit or certification,
15 shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the
16 department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of
17 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~
18 children and families. A license, training permit or certification issued or renewed
19 in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

20 **SECTION 252.** 146.51 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 146.51 (2) The department of health and family services may not disclose any
22 information received under sub. (1) to any person except to the department of
23 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the purpose of making
24 certifications required under s. 49.857.

25 **SECTION 253.** 146.51 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 146.51 (3) The department of health and family services shall deny an
2 application for the issuance or renewal of a license, training permit or certification
3 specified in sub. (1), shall suspend a license, training permit or certification specified
4 in sub. (1) or may, under a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857 (2),
5 restrict a license, training permit or certification specified in sub. (1) if the
6 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families certifies under s. 49.857
7 that the applicant for or holder of the license, training permit or certification is
8 delinquent in the payment of court-ordered payments of child or family support,
9 maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the
10 support of a child or former spouse or fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with
11 a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
12 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to
13 paternity or child support proceedings.

14 **SECTION 254.** 146.52 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

15 146.52 (1m) If an individual who applies for or to renew a license, training
16 permit or certificate under sub. (1) does not have a social security number, the
17 individual, as a condition of obtaining the license, training permit or certificate, shall
18 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the department
19 that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement
20 shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
21 families. A license, training permit or certificate issued or renewed in reliance upon
22 a false statement submitted under this subsection is invalid.

23 **SECTION 255.** 165.85 (3) (cm) of the statutes is amended to read:

24 165.85 (3) (cm) Decertify law enforcement, tribal law enforcement, jail or
25 secure detention officers who terminate employment or are terminated, who violate

1 or fail to comply with a rule or order of the board relating to curriculum or training,
2 who fail to pay court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance,
3 birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child
4 or former spouse or who fail to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or
5 warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
6 or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child
7 support proceedings. The board shall establish procedures for decertification in
8 compliance with ch. 227, except that decertification for failure to pay court-ordered
9 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
10 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse or for failure to
11 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
12 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
13 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
14 proceedings shall be done as provided under sub. (3m) (a).

15 **SECTION 256.** 165.85 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 165.85 (3m) (a) As provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into
17 with the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families under s.
18 49.857, refuse certification to an individual who applies for certification under this
19 section, refuse recertification to an individual certified under this section or decertify
20 an individual certified under this section if the individual fails to pay court-ordered
21 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
22 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse or if the individual
23 fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
24 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child

1 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
2 proceedings.

3 **SECTION 257.** 165.85 (3m) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 165.85 (3m) (b) 1. Request that an individual provide the board with his or her
5 social security number when he or she applies for certification or recertification
6 under this section. Except as provided in subd. 2., if an individual who is requested
7 by the board to provide his or her social security number under this paragraph does
8 not comply with the board's request, the board shall deny the individual's application
9 for certification or recertification. The board may disclose a social security number
10 provided by an individual under this paragraph only to the department of ~~workforce~~
11 development children and families as provided in a memorandum of understanding
12 entered into with the department of ~~workforce development children and families~~
13 under s. 49.857.

14 **SECTION 258.** 165.85 (3m) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 165.85 (3m) (b) 2. As a condition of applying for certification or recertification,
16 an individual who does not have a social security number shall submit a statement
17 made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the board that he or she does not
18 have a social security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the
19 department of ~~workforce development children and families~~. A certification or
20 recertification issued in reliance on a false statement submitted under this
21 subdivision is invalid.

22 **SECTION 259.** 169.34 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 169.34 (2) DISCLOSURE OF SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBERS. The department of natural
24 resources may not disclose any social security numbers received under sub. (1) to any

1 person except to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for
2 the sole purpose of administering s. 49.22.

3 **SECTION 260.** 169.34 (3) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 169.34 (3) (a) As provided in the memorandum of understanding required
5 under s. 49.857 (2), the department of natural resources shall deny an application
6 to issue or renew, to suspend if already issued, or to otherwise withhold or restrict
7 a license issued under this chapter if the applicant for or the holder of the license is
8 delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family support,
9 maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses, or other expenses related to the
10 support of a child or former spouse or if the applicant or holder fails to comply with
11 a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
12 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and relating to
13 paternity or child support proceedings.

14 **SECTION 261.** 170.12 (3m) (a) 1m. of the statutes is amended to read:

15 170.12 (3m) (a) 1m. If the applicant is an individual and does not have a social
16 security number, a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation that the
17 applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall
18 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families. A
19 permit issued in reliance upon a false statement submitted under this subdivision
20 is invalid.

21 **SECTION 262.** 170.12 (3m) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

22 170.12 (3m) (b) 2. The board may disclose information under par. (a) 1. or 2.
23 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance
24 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

25 **SECTION 263.** 170.12 (8) (b) 1. c. of the statutes is amended to read:

1 170.12 (8) (b) 1. c. In the case of a permit holder who is an individual, the
2 applicant fails to provide his or her social security number, fails to comply, after
3 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant that is issued by the department of
4 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
5 s. 59.53 (5) and that is related to paternity or child support proceedings or the
6 applicant is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or family
7 support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related
8 to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
9 understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose renewal
10 application is denied under this subd. 1. c. is entitled to a notice and hearing under
11 s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other hearing under this section.

12 **SECTION 264.** 170.12 (8) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

13 170.12 (8) (b) 2. The board shall restrict or suspend a permit issued under this
14 section if the board finds that, in the case of a permit holder who is an individual, the
15 permit holder fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant
16 that is issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or
17 a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and that is related to paternity or
18 child support proceedings or the permit holder is delinquent in making
19 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
20 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
21 as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. A
22 permit holder whose permit is restricted or suspended under this subdivision is
23 entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other
24 hearing under this section.

25 **SECTION 265.** 177.265 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 177.265 (1) (intro.) At least quarterly, the department of ~~workforce~~
2 ~~development~~ children and families shall reimburse the administrator, based on
3 information provided by the administrator, for all of the following:

4 **SECTION 266.** 196.218 (5) (d) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 196.218 (5) (d) 2. The commission shall annually provide information booklets
6 to all Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works agencies that describe the current assistance from the
7 universal service fund that is available to low-income individuals who are served by
8 the Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works agencies, including a description of how such individuals
9 may obtain such assistance. The department of ~~workforce development~~ children and
10 families shall assist the commission in identifying the Wisconsin ~~works~~ Works
11 agencies to which the commission is required to submit the information required
12 under this subdivision.

13 **SECTION 267.** 217.05 (1m) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

14 217.05 (1m) (b) 2. The division may disclose information under par. (a) 1. to the
15 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with a
16 memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

17 **SECTION 268.** 217.05 (1m) (c) 1. of the statutes is amended to read:

18 217.05 (1m) (c) 1. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
19 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
20 a license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to
21 the division that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of
22 the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~
23 children and families.

24 **SECTION 269.** 217.06 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 217.06 (6) If the applicant is an individual, the applicant has not failed to
2 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
3 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
4 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
5 proceedings and is not delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or
6 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
7 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
8 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

9 **SECTION 270.** 217.09 (1m) of the statutes is amended to read:

10 217.09 (1m) The division shall restrict or suspend any license issued under this
11 chapter to an individual, if the individual fails to comply, after appropriate notice,
12 with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~
13 children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related
14 to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in making court-ordered
15 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
16 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in
17 a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. A licensee whose
18 license is restricted or suspended under this subsection is entitled to a notice and
19 hearing only as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
20 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or hearing under this chapter.

21 **SECTION 271.** 218.0114 (20) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 218.0114 (20) (c) An applicant or licensee furnishing information under par. (a)
23 may designate the information as a trade secret, as defined in s. 134.90 (1) (c), or as
24 confidential business information. The licensor shall notify the applicant or licensee
25 providing the information 15 days before any information designated as a trade

1 secret or as confidential business information is disclosed to the legislature, a state
2 agency, as defined in s. 13.62 (2), a local governmental unit, as defined in s. 605.01
3 (1), or any other person. The applicant or licensee furnishing the information may
4 seek a court order limiting or prohibiting the disclosure, in which case the court shall
5 weigh the need for confidentiality of the information against the public interest in
6 the disclosure. A designation under this paragraph does not prohibit the disclosure
7 of a person's name or address, of the name or address of a person's employer or of
8 financial information that relates to a person when requested under s. 49.22 (2m) by
9 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
10 support agency under s. 59.53 (5).

11 **SECTION 272.** 218.0114 (21e) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 218.0114 (21e) (a) In addition to any other information required under this
13 section and except as provided in par. (c), an application by an individual for the
14 issuance or renewal of a license described in sub. (14) shall include the individual's
15 social security number and an application by a person who is not an individual for
16 the issuance or renewal of a license described in sub. (14) (a), (b), (c) or (e) shall
17 include the person's federal employer identification number. The licensor may not
18 disclose any information received under this paragraph to any person except the
19 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of
20 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of
21 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

22 **SECTION 273.** 218.0114 (21e) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

23 218.0114 (21e) (c) If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license
24 described in sub. (14) is an individual who does not have a social security number,
25 the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the license, shall

1 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the licensor that
2 the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall
3 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.
4 Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false statement submitted by an
5 applicant under this paragraph is invalid.

6 **SECTION 274.** 218.0114 (21g) (b) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 218.0114 (21g) (b) 2. The licensor may disclose information under par. (a) 1. to
8 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with
9 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

10 **SECTION 275.** 218.0114 (21g) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 218.0114 (21g) (c) If an applicant for the issuance or renewal of a license
12 described in sub. (16) is an individual who does not have a social security number,
13 the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew the license, shall
14 submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to the licensor that
15 the applicant does not have a social security number. The form of the statement shall
16 be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.
17 Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false statement submitted by an
18 applicant under this paragraph is invalid.

19 **SECTION 276.** 218.0116 (1g) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 218.0116 (1g) (a) A license described in s. 218.0114 (14) shall be denied,
21 restricted, limited or suspended if the applicant or licensee is an individual who fails
22 to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
23 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
24 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
25 proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or

1 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
2 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
3 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

4 **SECTION 277.** 218.0116 (1m) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

5 218.0116 (1m) (a) 3. The applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after
6 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
7 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
8 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent
9 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
10 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
11 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
12 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subdivision is entitled
13 to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or
14 hearing under ss. 218.0101 to 218.0163.

15 **SECTION 278.** 218.0116 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

16 218.0116 (1m) (b) A license described in s. 218.0114 (16) shall be restricted or
17 suspended if the licensee is an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate
18 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce~~
19 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53
20 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent in
21 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
22 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
23 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
24 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph

1 is entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other
2 notice or hearing under ss. 218.0101 to 218.0163.

3 **SECTION 279.** 218.02 (2) (a) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.02 (2) (a) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a. to
5 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with
6 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

7 **SECTION 280.** 218.02 (2) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

8 218.02 (2) (a) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
9 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
10 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
11 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
12 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
13 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
14 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
15 invalid.

16 **SECTION 281.** 218.02 (3) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 218.02 (3) (e) That, if the applicant is an individual, the applicant has not failed
18 to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
19 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
20 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
21 proceedings and is not delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child or
22 family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
23 related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of
24 understanding entered into under s. 49.857.

25 **SECTION 282.** 218.02 (6) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

1 218.02 (6) (b) In accordance with a memorandum of understanding entered
2 into under s. 49.857, the division shall restrict or suspend a license if the licensee is
3 an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or
4 warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families
5 or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child
6 support proceedings or who is delinquent in making court-ordered payments of child
7 or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses or other expenses
8 related to the support of a child or former spouse.

9 **SECTION 283.** 218.02 (9) (a) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 218.02 (9) (a) 2. Applications for licenses that are denied or licenses that are
11 restricted or suspended because the applicant or licensee has failed to comply, after
12 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
13 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
14 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in
15 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
16 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
17 former spouse.

18 **SECTION 284.** 218.04 (3) (a) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

19 218.04 (3) (a) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a. to
20 the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance with
21 a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

22 **SECTION 285.** 218.04 (3) (a) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

23 218.04 (3) (a) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
24 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
25 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath

1 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
2 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
3 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
4 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
5 invalid.

6 **SECTION 286.** 218.04 (4) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

7 218.04 (4) (am) 3. The applicant fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with
8 a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children
9 and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to
10 paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in making court-ordered
11 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
12 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, as provided in
13 a memorandum of understanding entered into under s. 49.857. An applicant whose
14 application is denied under this subdivision for delinquent payments is entitled to
15 a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not entitled to any other notice or hearing
16 under this section.

17 **SECTION 287.** 218.04 (5) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 218.04 (5) (am) The division shall restrict or suspend a license issued under
19 this section if the division finds that the licensee is an individual who fails to comply,
20 after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
21 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
22 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent
23 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
24 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
25 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under

1 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph
2 is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of
3 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or
4 hearing under this section.

5 **SECTION 288.** 218.05 (3) (am) 2. b. of the statutes is amended to read:

6 218.05 (3) (am) 2. b. The division may disclose information under subd. 1. a.
7 to the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families in accordance
8 with a memorandum of understanding under s. 49.857.

9 **SECTION 289.** 218.05 (3) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

10 218.05 (3) (am) 3. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
11 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
12 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
13 or affirmation to the division that the applicant does not have a social security
14 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
15 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
16 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
17 invalid.

18 **SECTION 290.** 218.05 (4) (c) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

19 218.05 (4) (c) 3. The applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after
20 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
21 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
22 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent
23 in making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
24 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
25 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under

1 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subdivision for
2 delinquent payments is entitled to a notice and hearing under s. 49.857 but is not
3 entitled to any notice or hearing under par. (b).

4 **SECTION 291.** 218.05 (11) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 218.05 (11) (c) The renewal applicant is an individual who fails to comply, after
6 appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of
7 ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under
8 s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or is delinquent in
9 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
10 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
11 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under
12 s. 49.857. An applicant whose application is denied under this subsection for
13 delinquent payments or failure to comply with a subpoena or warrant is entitled to
14 a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered
15 into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or hearing under this
16 section.

17 **SECTION 292.** 218.05 (12) (am) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 218.05 (12) (am) The division shall restrict or suspend any license issued under
19 this section if the licensee is an individual who fails to comply, after appropriate
20 notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the department of ~~workforce~~
21 ~~development~~ children and families or a county child support agency under s. 59.53
22 (5) and related to paternity or child support proceedings or who is delinquent in
23 making court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth
24 expenses, medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or
25 former spouse, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under

1 s. 49.857. A licensee whose license is restricted or suspended under this paragraph
2 is entitled to a notice and hearing only as provided in a memorandum of
3 understanding entered into under s. 49.857 and is not entitled to any other notice or
4 hearing under this section.

5 **SECTION 293.** 218.11 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

6 218.11 (2) (am) 3. The department of commerce may not disclose any
7 information received under subd. 1. to any person except to the department of
8 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of administering s. 49.22
9 or to the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting certifications
10 under s. 73.0301.

11 **SECTION 294.** 218.11 (2) (am) 4. of the statutes is amended to read:

12 218.11 (2) (am) 4. If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
13 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
14 a license under this section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath
15 or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social security
16 number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of
17 ~~workforce development~~ children and families. Any license issued or renewed in
18 reliance upon a false statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is
19 invalid.

20 **SECTION 295.** 218.11 (6m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

21 218.11 (6m) (a) A license under this section shall be denied, restricted, limited
22 or suspended if an applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making
23 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
24 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
25 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued

1 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
2 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
3 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
4 49.857.

5 **SECTION 296.** 218.12 (2) (am) 2. of the statutes is amended to read:

6 218.12 (2) (am) 2. The department of commerce may not disclose a social
7 security number obtained under par. (a) to any person except to the department of
8 ~~workforce development~~ children and families for the sole purpose of administering
9 s. 49.22 or to the department of revenue for the sole purpose of requesting
10 certifications under s. 73.0301.

11 **SECTION 297.** 218.12 (2) (am) 3. of the statutes is amended to read:

12 218.12 (2) (am) 3. If an applicant does not have a social security number, the
13 applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew a license under this
14 section, shall submit a statement made or subscribed under oath or affirmation to
15 the department that the applicant does not have a social security number. The form
16 of the statement shall be prescribed by the department of ~~workforce development~~
17 children and families. Any license issued or renewed in reliance upon a false
18 statement submitted by an applicant under this subdivision is invalid.

19 **SECTION 298.** 218.12 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

20 218.12 (3m) (a) A license shall be denied, restricted, limited or suspended if the
21 applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making court-ordered
22 payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses, medical expenses
23 or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse, or who fails to
24 comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued by the
25 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child

1 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
2 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
3 49.857.

4 **SECTION 299.** 218.21 (2f) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

5 218.21 (2f) (a) If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
6 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
7 a motor vehicle salvage dealer's license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed
8 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social
9 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department
10 of ~~workforce development~~ children and families.

11 **SECTION 300.** 218.21 (2m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

12 218.21 (2m) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any
13 information received under sub. (2) (ag) or (am) to any person except to the
14 department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families for purposes of
15 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of
16 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

17 **SECTION 301.** 218.22 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

18 218.22 (3m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license
19 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making
20 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
21 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
22 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued
23 by the department of ~~workforce development~~ children and families or a county child
24 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support

1 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
2 49.857.

3 **SECTION 302.** 218.31 (1f) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

4 218.31 (1f) (a) If an applicant who is an individual does not have a social
5 security number, the applicant, as a condition of applying for or applying to renew
6 a motor vehicle auction dealer's license, shall submit a statement made or subscribed
7 under oath or affirmation to the department that the applicant does not have a social
8 security number. The form of the statement shall be prescribed by the department
9 of workforce development children and families.

10 **SECTION 303.** 218.31 (1m) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 218.31 (1m) (b) The department of transportation may not disclose any
12 information received under sub. (1) (ag) or (am) to any person except to the
13 department of workforce development children and families for purposes of
14 administering s. 49.22 or the department of revenue for the sole purpose of
15 requesting certifications under s. 73.0301.

16 **SECTION 304.** 218.32 (3m) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

17 218.32 (3m) (a) The department shall deny, restrict, limit or suspend a license
18 if the applicant or licensee is an individual who is delinquent in making
19 court-ordered payments of child or family support, maintenance, birth expenses,
20 medical expenses or other expenses related to the support of a child or former spouse,
21 or who fails to comply, after appropriate notice, with a subpoena or warrant issued
22 by the department of workforce development children and families or a county child
23 support agency under s. 59.53 (5) and related to paternity or child support
24 proceedings, as provided in a memorandum of understanding entered into under s.
25 49.857.